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Date: 29.08.2024

The Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ld. (MSET)
Vibgyor Towers, dth Fior,

Plot No € 62, G-Block,

Opp. Trident Hotel,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai-400098, India

Dear Sir,
This s to inform you thut the Board of Directors of the Company has decided the following:-
1. Intimation of Dispatch of Notice

Pursuant 1o Regulation 30 read with Part-A of Schedule-1ll of Securities & Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has completed the dispatch of Notice of Annual General Meeting along with
Annual Repoant of the Company on 29.08.2024 in the permitted mode for the Financial
Year 2023-24.

1. Amnual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company is scheduled to be held
on 24th day of Seprember, 2024 a1 10.00 A.M. a1 Ground Floor, B-2 Realme Showroom
Next 1o Liberty Optical, Nymolotha Road, Dimapur, NL-797112, IN

Pursuamt 1o Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing
herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 319,
2024 along with the Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company.



The Annual Repon of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024 is available on
company’s website ot waww hwpl.co.in

1, Book Closure
Pursumnt 1o Section 91 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfier Books will
remain closed from Wednesday, 18 day of September, 2024 10 Tuesday, 24™ day of
September, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

4. - Voting

In compiiance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Management und Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the
SERT (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Company has decided to provide the facility 1o
members o exercise their right 1o vote at the Ensuing Annual General Mecting {AGM)
by electronic means and the business may be tinsacted through E- Voting Services
provided by Central Depository Services (Indin) Limited (CDSL).

The Voting period will commence on 215t day of September, 2024 ot 9.00 A M and
end on 23rd day of September, 2024 a1 £.00 P.M. During this period sharcholders of
the Company. holding shares either in physical fisrm or Dematerialized form, us on the
cut-olf date, e, 17" day of September, 2024 may cast their vote clectronically,

Ms. Priya Mankani of Ma. Mankani & Associates, practicing compary secretaries has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer for E-Voting purpose

You pre requesied 1o take on recond the aforesald information.

Thanking you.
Yours® fithlully,

For HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED

HOTAHCTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD

Tarak Nath Dey Riractor
DIRECTOR
DIN: DO343394
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NOTICE

Notice 15 hereby given thar the 40" Annual General Mesting of the members of
HOTAHOTI WOOD FRODUCTS LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, 24
Seplermber, 2024 at 10:00 AM. at the registered office ot Ground Flooe, B-2 Realme
Showroom Next to Liberty Optical, Nymolotha Road, Dimapur, NL-T97112, IN 10
trarsact the following business:

Orrdinary Business:

L To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the fimancial year
ended March 31, 2024 and Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

L Toappoint a director in place of Mrs. Chanchal Rungta {([YIN; 07580027), who retires
by rotution and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursunt o Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisians, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit snd Auditors) Rules, 2014
[including any statutery modification(s) or re-enactmentix) therea for the fime being in farce]
ad pursuant 1o the recommendation of the Awdit Committee. M's. 5. Mandal & Co,
Chartered Aceountants, having Finm Registration No. 114188F e and are herehy reappointed
ws the Statutory Auditars of the Compary for the second consscutive term of five vears, from
the conclusion of this 40 Annual Ceneral Meeting 111l the conclusion of the 45t Anmaal
Gieneral Mecting to be held in the year 2029, to examine and audit the accounts of the
Cimpany 8l sisch remumneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in conauliation
with the Stnutory Auditors of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Hotahoti Wood Products Limired
HOTAHOTI WOCD PRO DUCTSLTD

T AL ==X
in
Tarak NathDey
Mace: Kolkata Managing Director
Date: 28,05.2024 DIN: 00343396

Corporate (ffice; 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4* Floor, Kalkata-700001
Tel (STD Codel: 033 66133300, Fax: 033-66133300
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NOTES:
I. A Member entitled 1o attend and vote at the Annual Geneml Meeting (* AGM') may

appoint a prowy to attend and vote on his behall. A proxy need not be a Member of
the Company,

Proxies, in order 10 be effective, must be received ut the Registered Office of the
Company at Ground Floor, B-2 Realme Showroom Nest to Liberty Optical,
Nymolotha Road, Dimapur, NL-7971 L2 IN, not bess than forty-cight hours before the
commencement of the ACIM,

A person can act as a proxy on behall of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the totl share capital of the Company
carrving voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the toral share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder,

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of
the mecting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting. a member would be
entitled to inspect the pronies lodged with the Company, at any time during the
business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three davs of notice in
writing is given to the Company,

2. Pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act. 2013, corporate members are
requested 1o send a centified copy of the Board Resolution/Authorization together
with specimen signature autherizing their representative, intending to attend and vote
at the ACIM.

3. Members are requested 0 bring their copies of Annual Report 1o the Meeting, in order
10 register the atiendance, at the venue of the Annual General Meeting. members are
requested o bring their folio numberdemal aceount aumber/DP TD-Client 1D to
enable us to provide a duly filled attendance slip for your signature and participation
ot the meeting.

4. In case of joint helders attending the meeting, only such joint holder wha is higher in
the order of names will be entitled 1o vote.

5. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from Wednesduy,
Septernber 18, 2024 w0 Tuesday, September 24, 2024 (hoth days inclusive) for the
purpose of Annus! General Meeting,

6. In case any member is desirous to receive communication from the Company in
clectronic form, they may register their email address with Company ar with their
depository participant or send their consent at the Registered Office of the Company
along with theér folic no. and valid email address for registration.

Corparate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4% Floor, Kolkata-700001
Tel (STD Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 033-66133303
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7. In wrms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2003 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies  (Management and  Adminmistration) Amendment Rules. 2015, the
Resolutions proposed at this AGM will be transacted through remote e-voting (facility
10 cast vote from a place other than the venue of the AGM) and for which purpose the
company has engaged the services of CDSIL. The Board of Directors of the Campany
has uppoinied Ms. Priva Mankani of M/s. Mankanl & Associstes, Practicing
Company Secretary (Centificate of Practice Number- 1 7047), as the Scrutinizer for
this purpese. The detnifed insructions for e-voting are given as & separate attachment
to this notice. The e-voting period beging on Saturday, September 21, 2024 ot 9.00
AM and ends on Monday, September 23, 2024 m 5,00 PM.

B. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name
ol the Members as en September 17, 2024 (cut-off daie). Only those Members whose
names are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Regisier of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depasitories as on the cut-ofl date will be
entitled 10 cast their votes by remote e-voting.

9. Additionn! Information pursuam (o Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2013 (hereinafier referred as  Listing
Regulstions) on Dhrector seeking appointment / re-appointment at this AGM is
furnished herewith snnexure 1o the Notice, The directors have furnished their consent
for appointment / re-appointment as reguired under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Hules thereunder.

10. Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised 0 make
nomination n respest of thelr sharcholding in the Company. The Nomination Form
SH 13 prescribed by the Government can be obtained from the Company at its
Registered Office.

11, Members, who wish 1o obtain information on the Company or desire 1o view the
Financial Staterments, may visit the Company's corporate websile or send their querics
ot least 10 days before the AGM 1o the Registered Office of the Company.

12. The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (SERT) has mandated the submission of
Permarent Account Number (PAN) by every paricipant in securities market,
Members halding shares in electromic fiorm are, therefore, mequested o submit their
PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN w0 the
Company.

13, In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and
further circulars, clarifications and notification issued in the context matter by MCA
ond go green initintive of MCA, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Repon
M23%.24 is being sent only through clectronic mode to those Members whose email
mddrosses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the
Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room Nao. 405, 4% Floor, Kol kata-700001

Tel (ST Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 033-66133303




HOTATIOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTI
Giround Floor, B-2 Realme Showroom Next o Liberty Optical, Nymolotha Road,
Dimapur, N1L-T97112, IN
Email Id: hwpl] T8gmailcom, Phone No: I3-66133300
CIN: 120211 NLI19SPLCO0T 149

Welsitewww hwplonm

Notice and Annual Report 20231-24 will also be available on the Company's website
and in the websites of the Stack Fxchange.

By Order of the Roard of Directors
For Hotahoti Wood Products |imited

; U PROQUCTSLTD
HOTAHOT! WQCD PR QLT

Tarsk Maih
P Kolkat ) I||I:I'I'I IPI‘.H"FH.-
Dame: 28.05.2074 DN 304G

Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of Companies Act, 2013
lem No: 3

Thas Explanmtory Statement is in terms of Regulation 36(%) of the Securities uid Fxchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations wnd Disclosre Reguirements) Repulations, 2015
(*SEBI Listing Regulations"), though statstorily not required in terms of Section 102 of the
Act. The Members at the 35" Annusl General Mesting (*AGM') of the Company held in
the year 2019, hod approved appoirtment of 5. Mandal & Co. Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. J14188F ), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of the 35™ ACGM bl the conclusion of the 40% AGM of the Company 1o
be held in the year 2024, After evalusting snd considesing variows factors such as industry
experience, competency of the ausdit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independance,
ete... the Board of Direciors of the Company (*Boand") has. based on the recommendation of
|hnwiltmmwwndﬂ=uppnhumuurs.Mﬂﬂn,uﬂuﬁ:ﬂm
Auditors of the Campany, for the second comsecutive term of five years from the conchssion
of 40" AGM 1il] the conclusion of 45* AGM of the Company 1o be held in the yeur 2029, m
& remuneration 28 may be mutully agreed between the Board and the Statutory Auditors.
Firm have consented to their appointment as the Statutory Auditors and have confirmed thar
the appointment, if made, would be within the fimite specified unde Section 141i3)ig) of
the Act and that they are not disgualified 10 be appointed as the Sututory Auditons in terms
af the provisions of Section |39 and 141 of the Act and the Rulos framed thereunder, Firm
regstered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indin. Firm audits various
companles listed on stock exchange: in India. The Beard, In consubtation with the Aodit
Committoe shall approve revisions in the remamerstion of the Statwory Anditors for the
terwre. Besides the sudit services, the Company would sho ohiain cenifications from the
Statutory Auditors imder various ststwory regulations and cenifications required by clients.
hanks, steutory authorities, audit related services and other permissible non-audil services
as required from time 1o time, for which they will be remunemted separately on mutually
agreed terma, as approved by the Board In comsultation with the Audit Commimse, The
Roard, in consultation with the Audit Commiltes, may alier and vary the ferms and
conditions of meappointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as
may be mutally sgreed with the Swmwtory Auditors. None of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in my way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise. in the Resolution at ftem No. 3 of the sccompanying Netics, Based
on the recommendation of the Audit Comminee. the Board recommends the Ordinury
Resolution set forth at ltern Mool of the Notlor for approval by the Members.

Carparate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4% Floar, Kolkata-700001
Tel (STD Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 03366133303
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Same af the Miri Chanchal Hisngta
| Birector
Dhate of Birth | 0208199
Date of | 13082016
| Appaintment ;
|
Relationship with | f :
i | Daughter of Mr. Chand Ratan Madi
Txpertise in [
Specific functional |
areh | [1ata Analytics
Qualification . Girndumtion in Master nrﬁciuutrmiln:]-_!l?r;j D
I

) I, North Eustern Publishing snd Advertising Co Lid.
Aoard Membership | 3 Kamini Finance And Investment cum“fr Lt
of Companies 3, Purhanchal Prestressed Lid
4. Visisth Chay Vyapaar Lid
3 Mourya inading Co, Lid.

ChairmanMember |

of the Commiliees | it Committee: Membesshio; 3.
of the Boprd of | Stakeholder relationship Comminee: Membership:1,
Directors & o dade | Chairmanship: §

Number of Shares
neld i the t
Company =5 on .
March 31, 2024

INSTRUCTION FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS
Dear Member,

In compliance with Regulstion 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the applicable rules, the Company is pleased to provide e-voling facility 1o all its
Members, 1 enable to cast their vote zlectronically instead of dispatching the physical
postal hallot form by post The Company has engaged the services of CDSL for the
purpuse of providing e-voting facility to all its members.

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4* Floor, Kolkata-700001
Tel (STD Codel: N33 66133300, Fax: 033-661 33303
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The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

i The remate e-voting period commences on 21% September, 2024 (9:00 am) and ends
on 23 September, 2024 (5:00 pm). During this period members’ of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-ofY dae
of September 17, 2024, may caxst their vote by remote e-voting.

The remote e-voting module shall be dissbled by CIISL for viting theresfler, Once
the vole on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed 1o
change it subsequently.

Shareholders who have already voied peior 1o the meeting date would wot be entitled
fo vole @t the meeling vermae,

il The sharcholders should log on 10 the e-voting website ww wevotng indin com daring
the voling period.

ifi. Click on “Shareholders™ tab.

iv. Now Enter vour User ID

& For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b For NSDL: 8§ Character DP 1D followed by & Digits Client 1D,

€. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company, excluding the special chamciers.

v. Next enter the Image Verification as displaved and Click on Login.

vi. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 1o wivw.evdingindincom
ldmhdunmmihrmh;nrmmpum.ﬂmmmmmismh
sed

Vi, If you are 8 first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form !

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income [ax Department
{Applicable for both demat shareholders as well s physical sharchalders),
Members who have not upduted their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested (o use the first twa letters of their name and the §
digits of the sequence number in the PAN Field

In case the sequence number hlmmanidigimmlhupplhﬂﬂcmj@;_

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Roam No. 405, 4* Floor, Kolkata-200001
Tel (STD Code); 033 66133300, Fax: 033-66133303
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of O°s hefore the number after the first two chamciers of the name in
CAPITAL leniers. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumiar with sequence number
| then enter

RADOIOOON] in the PAN field.

DoR Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demal account with the

depasitory or in the company records for your folio in dd/mmiyyyy format

Bank Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat acooum with the
Account | depository or in the company records for your folia,
Number | Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to | ogin.

{DBL)

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then
please enter the member-id | folio number in the Rank Account Number
details ficld as mentioned in above instruction (iv).

wiii.

e

xdi.

Xiii.

Xiv.

After entering these details appropristely, click on *SURMIT™ mh

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required 1o mandatorily enter their
!{gmpuﬁwdhthmpmndﬂdd Kindly note thet this password is 1o be
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of anv other company on
which they are eligible 10 vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended aot (o share your password with any
other perton and take utmost care o keep your password confidential

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e
voling on the resolutions contaned in this Notice,

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name Le. HOTAHOT! WOOD
PRODUCTS LIMITED on which vou choose 1o vole,

On the voting page, you will see “"RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION™ and against the
same the option “YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
opticn YES implies that you assent 1 the Resolution and option NO implies that
v dissent to the Resolution,

Chck on the “RESQLUTIONS FILE LINK” if vou wish o view the entine
Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you huve decided 1w vote on, elick on “SUBMIT™, A
confirmation box will be displaved. IT you wish o confirm your vole, elick on

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No, 405, 4% Floor, Kolkata-700001
Tel (STD Codel: 033 66133300, Fax: 01366113303
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"OK", else 1 change your vote, click on “CANCEL”™ and sccordingly modify vour
vote,

Once you “CONFIRM™ vour vete on the resolution, yvou will not be allowed 1o
mindify vour vote.

xvi, You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here 1o

print” option on the Voting page.

xvil. I Demat account holder has forgolten the same password then enter the Liser 1D

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
premmipted by the system,

xviii. Note for Institational Skareholders & Custodians :

N,

Institutional sharcholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on 10 Mip www evitingndiocom snd register
themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdisk evonmgaoods lindia com,

After receiving the login details they have o create a compliance user which should
be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able
to link the accountis) for which they wish to vole on,

The list of accounts should be mailed 1o helpdesh cviting wedslingdiacom and on
approval of the accounts they would be able 1o cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian. if any. should be uploaded in PDF format in
the svstem for the scrutinizer (o verify the same.

In case you have any queries or fssues regarding e-voting. you may refor the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and e-voling manual availshle
waw eyotingindipeom  under help section or write an  email
helpdesh evirtingss pdslindia com or contact them an 1 K00 20 $511

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's maobile app m-Voting available
for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Gioogle Play
Store. (Phone and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Stare

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, ¢ Floor, Kolkata-700001
Tel (ST Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 03366133103
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and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 30th June 2016 Please
follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while vating on vour mobile.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (.2, other than individuals, HUF, NRI
eie,) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution’ Authority letter e ogether with aested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory (ies) who are authorized 10 vole through e-mail at
mankani.pria/@gmail.com with a copy marked to helpdesk.ovoting@edslindia com
on or before 23 September, 2024, up w 05:00 p.m. withouwt which the vote shall
ot be treated as valid.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion 1o their shares of the paid up
equity  share capital of the Company a5 on the cut-off date of Sepember 179,
2024. A person who is nol 8 member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for
information purpose anly,

The notice of the Annual General Meeting will be semt 1o the members, whose
names appear in the register of members / Depositories as ot closing hours of
business an Auguost 16, 2024,

The shareholders shall have cne vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off
date of September |7, 2024, The facility of e-voting would be provided once for
every fodio / client id, irespective of the number of joint holders.

Since the Company is required to provide members the focility to cast their voe by
electronic means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in demateriafized form, as on the cut-off date of September 177, 2024 and
not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General
Meeting.

Notice of the AGM along with anendance slip, proxy form along with the process,
trstructions and the manner of conducting e-voting is being sent clectronically 1o all
the members whose e-mail 1Ds are regisered with the Company / Depository
Participant(s). For members who request for a hard copy and for thase who have not
registered their emnil addresy, physicn] copies of the same are being sent through
the permitted mode.

Investors, who became members of the Company subsequent o the dispateh of the
Motice / Email and hald the shares a3 on the cut-off date Le. September 179, 2024
requested 1o send the written / email communication to the Company at

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4% Floor, Kol kata-7000m
Tel (STD Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 033-661313303
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hwpll 7@ gmail.comby mentioning their Folio No. / DP 11D and Client 1D to obtain
the Login-1D and Password for e-voting.

Ms. Priya Mankani, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number-
17947) has been appointed 85 the Scrutinizer 1o scrutinize the remote 2-voting
process and voting at the AGM in a fair and ransparent manncr. The Scrutinizer
will submit, not later than 3 working days of conclusion of the ACGM, a consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or again, I any, 1o the
Chairman of the Company or a person nuthorized by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the
website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the listed stock exchanges viz,
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India.

The Results doclared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
website of CTISLL. The same will be communicated to the listed stock exchanges viz.
Metropolitan Sinck Exchange of India,

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Strect, Room No. 405, 4% Floor, Kolkata-T00001
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over af the entrance af the Meeting Hall)

Folia No.: DI N Cliens-1D No.

Neime of Memberix):

Neme of the Proxy holder;

Regiviered Addvess:

Number of Shares Held

L hereky recard my presence w the 408 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Compearry held on tuesday the 24th day af Seprember, 2024 ar 10.00 aom (Froumed Floor,
B-2 Realme Showroom Nexi jo Liherry Optical, Nymolatha Road Dimapur, NI1L-7971 12,
IN

Signature of e Member / Represemtative | Pracvy Helder®
* Strike our whichever is not applicably
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FORM OF PROXY
(Prorsuamt 10 Section 10376) of the Compeanies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Managenent angd Admimisteation) Rudes, 2014

Folio Mo, DPID No,» Clhent 1D N,
Name af the Memberrs): __ Email k-
Hu'giﬂ'rnd

Aufelre v

We, being members, holding shares af HOTAROT! WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED
hereby appaint:

I. Name: F-mail I B
Adfress. o failing fum her

2 Name: E-mail 1d

Adefrexs: o failing himher

3 Naowe: E-mail Id

Audelrexs

as ey S ower Proxy fo vote for me s, on my our behalf af ihe 40 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING of the Compem held on tuesday the 24*  day of September, 2024 at 10,00
amr. il el oy aljourmment thereaf m rexpect of the following resolutions.

Adoption of Balance Sheet, Siatement of Profit & Loxx, Report of Awditors and Board
af Divectors for the year endod 31" Mareh, 2024,
Revire by Rotation

Re-appaintment of § Mandal & Co. as statwtory and tax anditor,

Stgnec this  davof 2024 Signatwree af Member

Stgnature of Proxy holderfy): |
3

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4 Floar, Kolkata-700001
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Name & Registered Address
of Sole'First named Member

Joint THolders Name (Ifany) -
Falio No. / DP TD & Chient 11
No. of Equity Shares Held
Desr Sharcholder,

Subject: Process and munner for availing E-voting facility:

Pursuant 10 Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and  Administration) Rules, 2014 s smended by the
Companics (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation
44 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulaiions, 2015,
the Company is pleased to provide F-voting facility to the members 1o cast their voles
electronically on all resolutions proposed 10 be considered st the Annunl General Meeting
{AGM) to be held on Tuesday the 24 day of September, 2024 ot 10,08 a.m 1t Ground
Flooe, B-2 Realme Showroom Next to Liberty Optical, Nymaolotha Road, Dimapur, NL-
TOTN2, ™ and st any adjournment themeod.

The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) 1o provide the e-voting facility. The e-viating facility is available at the link
hitps:fwww evolingndia.com

The Electronic Voling Particulars ane set out below:

{Electronic Vating
Sequence Number)

240813015

Corporate Office 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4% Floor, Kolkata-7000
Tel (STD Code): 033 66133300, Fax: 033-66133303
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The E-voting facility will be available during the fallowing voting period:
"~ Remote eVoting Start On Remute eVoting End On

21 September, 2024 at 3:00 AM. (IST) | 237 September, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (I5T)

Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notice of AGM before exercising your vote.
By Order of the Doard

For Hotahoti Wood Prodocts Limited
HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD.

i T <
Tarak N e

Managing Director
DIN: DO343396)
Place: Kolkats
Date- 28052024
Encl: AGM Natice

Corporate Office: 4, Synagogue Street, Room No. 405, 4™ Floor, Kollkata-700001
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Route map for the location of the venue of the 40 Annual Genernl Meeting of the
Hotahoti Wood Products Limited is given below:
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

Ta,
The Members,
Your direciors have pleasure in presenting the 40® Annual Report on the business and

aperntions of the company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended
31" March, 2024,

During the year under review, performance of vour company its under

(*Ri. In thousands)
Yenr Ended 3151 | Year Ended 315t
A March, 2024 | March, 2023

(Profit’ Loss before Taxation 31 7278
Less: Tax Expenses
[Current Tan - -
{Profivy{Loss) after Tax 3341 7
Inﬂ: Babnce Brought Forwerd from last vear (73 (78852}
Transferred 1o Reserve ws 451C of the RBI Act, 1934 1256
‘Taxanon for Enrlier Year % -
Balance Profiv (Loss) ¢ 1o Balance Sheel [Tu_ljﬂ_ﬂ (72,030}

State of Company’s Affairs and Future Outlook

The performance of the Company diepends upon host of facters and it is trying o overcome
varhcis market risks and other external factors which affects its progress.

A deteiled exercise is being carmicd out 1o identify, evaluate, manage and monitor non-business
rigks, We remain optimistic about the performance of the company hence It has widens s
activities in Capital Market and is looking into the opportunities in debt market and hedge
market oo, further exploring other ventures for the benefit of the Sharcholders.

Share Capital

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31%, 2024 was Rs. 19,99 crores, During the year
under review, the Company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments,

My iddend

Your Directors regret 1o recommend declaration of any dividend for the year due to loss during
the year,

Annual Report 2023-2004
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MNBFC Reserve Fuond

During the year under review, Re.668 (sum in thousand) was transferred 1o the NBFC Reserve
Fund due to loss during the year as required by the provisions of Section 451C of R Act,
1534,

Amount transferred 1o Reserves
During the vear, the Company tansferred nil amount 1o reserves

Material Changes Affecting the Financial Position of the Company
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

occurred between the end of the financial vear to which this financial statements relate on the
date of this report.

Change in the nature of Business, if any

The Company is engaged in Non-Banking Financial activity and is duly registered with the
RBI as an NBFC Company. In the current F.Y -2024-25 company is In process of voluntarily
surrendering the C.o.R. with the RBI and 1o pursue the business activity in real estate sector in
future.

Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments nader Section 186

Section 186 of the Companies Act. 2013 does not apply 10 the Company because the compamny
being a Non-Banking Financial Company makes loans and investments in its ordinary course
of business,

Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions (*RPT") entéred into during the financial vear were on an am's
length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant Related
Party Tramsactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directoes, Related Partics or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large.

The Board has formulated n Related Party Transactions Policy for the purpose of jdentification
and monitoring of such transactions.

Panticulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties refered to in Section | BR(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed form ADC-2 is appended as Annexure-] 1o the

Board's report.
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adequate system of internal control 1 safeguard and protect itsell from loss,
unauthorized use or disposition of its assess. All the transactions are properly authorized,
recorded and reported 1o the Management. The Company is following all the applicable
Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of sccounts and reporting financial

Annuel Report 2023-204
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statements, The intermal auditor of the Company checks and verifies the imemal controd and
maonitors them in sccordance with policy adopled by the Company,

R | Directive to NBFC

The Company did not invite or accept any deposits from the public during the financial year
ended 31" March, 2024. For the current financial vear commencing on 19 April, 2024 the
Board of Directors of the Company has confirmed by a Board Resplution dated 39 April,
2024, that the Company shall not invite or accept any deposit from public during the Financial
Year, 2024-2023.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

The provision of Section | 34(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.
There was no lorecign inflow or outflow during the vear under review,

Details of Subsidiary, Joint Veature or Associates

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joinl Venture and Associate Company within the
purview of the Companies Act, 2011,

Risk Management Policy

As an NRFC, your company is subjected o both external risk and internal risk. External risk
due 1o interest mie Nuctoation, slowdown in coonomic growth rate, political instability, mariet
volatility, decline in forcign exchange reserves. e Imermal risks associared with your
company's business which includes deployment of funds in specific projects. diversifications
into other business operations, retention of talenled personnel, managing effective growth e,
volatility in interest rate, NPAs in pontfalio, changes in compliance norms and regulations,
contingent liabilitizs, and other legal proceedings. Your company recognizes the importance of
risk managerient, and has invested in people, process and wechnologies 1o effectively mitigate
the above risks.

Directors
As per the pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Chanchal Rungia (DIN No.

D73%0027] will retire by rotation ai the ensuing annual general meeting and being eligible, has
offered herseli for re-appointment. The Boand recommends her re-appoiniment.

As on date the following are the directors of the Company:

51 MNAME DESIGNATION
NO e

I Tomk NathDey | Managing Director

2 | Chanchal Rungma Director -

3 Chand Hatan Maodi Director

Annunl Report 2073-2074
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4 [ AviLunia independent Director (Till i 28.05.2024) |
5 Juyanta Chowdhury Independent Director | praposed 1o be sppointed in |
EGM weef du 25062024, subject 10 sharchalders |
JESE, approval)
i | Binod Kumar Bihani independent Director

Number of Board Mectings

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Board met 5 times on 039 April 2023: 30° May 2023,
10™ August, 2023; ™ November, 2023; 17" January, 2024,

Detaiks of significant & material arders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

No significant & material orders has been passed by any regulator or court or tribunal against
the Company.

Receipt of any commission by MIVY WTD from o Company or for receipt of commission/
remuneration from its Holding or Subsidiary

The Company has not received any commission by MDY WTD fram a Company, its holding or
subsidiary.

Vighl Mechanism

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducied in & fair
and ransparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professianalism, honesty, integrity
and ethical behavior the Company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy.

Corporate Govermance and Management Discussion Annlysis

The Company has in place the SEBI regulations pertaining 1o Corporate Govemance. Diurimg
the year, the Company had § member in the Board consisting of one Managing Director, 2
Non-Exccutive Independent Director, one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and one
Nom- Executive Promoter Director.

The Corporme Governance Centificate for the vear ended March 317, 2024 s issued by Ms.
Priya Mankani of M/s. Mankani & msociates, Practicing Company Secretaries, of the
Company.

The Company has in place an Insider Trading Code for compliance with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulstions, 2015, Detajls of
securities transaction by insiders are placed before the Board of Directors of the Company and
also notified 1o the Stock Exchanges.

Tarak Nath Dey, Managing Director and Ms. Tripty Modi, Chief Financial Officer, have given
their certificate under Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule 11 of SCRI-LODR
regarding annual financial statements for the vear ended March 319, 2024 to the Board of
Directors and the same has been anached with this report a5 Annexure-11. The Managing
Director has given certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of SERI-

Annual Report 2023-2024
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LODR regarding compliance with the Code of Conduet of the Company for the vear ended
March 119, 2024 which s amached ns Annexure-lil and forms u part of this Report af
Directors.

Management Discussion and Analysis as required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 has been incorporated in this
reput os scparate annexure-1V,

Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors have declared 1o the company stating their independence pursuent
10 Section 149(6) of the Company’s Act 2013, and the same wiis noted by the Board of
[¥rectars at its mesting.

An Independent Director shall hold office for u werm of five consecutive vears on the Board of
the Company, but it shall be eligible for reappointment for next five years on passing of
Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure of such in Boand's Repon.

Key Managerial Person:

Ms. Tripty Modi is designated as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company of the Company
pursuant o the provisions of sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appoimtment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Mr. Pawan Kr. Tiwan is appointed as the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer,
Audit Commitiee

The Auwdit committee comprises of 1 directors. The committee Rinetlons under the
Chalrmanship of Mr. Rinod Kemar Bihanl, a Non-Executive Independent Director. The other
members of the Committee are Mr. Chand Ratan Modi and Mr, Avi Lunia (till date
28.03.2024), Mr. Jayanta Chowdbury {proposed 0 be appointed in EGM on and we.f dt.:
25062024, subject to shareholders approval). The Managing Director und the Chiel Financial
Officer are permanent invitees 1o the meeting.

The details of the related party transuctions are placed before the Audit commimes
perindically. Any recommendations: (i any) placed by the Committce s considered and
adopted by the Board. All persons have direct sccess 10 the Chalrman for sharing their
grievances. The Awdit Commiitee also has the responsibility to assess risks and find corrective
measures o mitigate the same.

The commitiee met 4 times during the vear on 307" May, 2023: 0™ Auvgust. 2023; ™
November, 2023; 17" January, 2024.

MNomination & Remuneration Committee Policy

A Remuneration Commitiee was constituted by the Board of Directors to consider,
determine and approve on behall’ of the demdmhhﬂrufm:mﬂdd!nﬂu

Annuol Report 202 3-204
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remuneration 1o be paid o the executive directors of the Company. The committee functions
under the Chairmanship of Mr. Rinod Kumar Bihani, 8 Non-Executive Independent Director,
The other members of the Committee arc Mr, Chand Ratan Mod] and Mr. Avl Lunia and Mr.
Jayanta Chowdhory (proposed 1o be appointed in EGM on and w.ef 25.06.2024, subject 10
shareholders approval).

Stakcholder Relationship Committec

The Sukeholder Relationship Committee comprises of 3 Directors. The committes fumctions
under the Chairmanship of Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, a Non-Executive Independent Director.
The other members of the Committee are Mrs, Chanchal Rungia and Mr. Avi Lunia and Mr.

Jayanta Chowdhury (proposed o be appointed in EGM on and w.e.f 25.06.2024, subject 1o
sharcholders approval).

Registrar und Transfer Agents

The Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company is Niche Technologies Pvt. Ll The
shares of the Company are listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Fducation and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid Inst year, the provisions of
Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

Extruct of Annual Return

Pursuant 1o Section 134{3Ma)and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 12{1)of the Companics (Managemen: and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time w0 time, the Annual Rewm of the Company is available on the Company’s
website at www. hwpl.co.in

Auditors
1. Staratory Anditors

Mis S Mandal & Co. (Firm Registration No: 314188F), Chartered Accountants, have been
appointed as statutery auditors of the Company at the 35" Annual General Meeting (AGM) for
a period of five vears 1ill the conclusion of 40% AGM. Accordingly, M. S, Mandal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, will continue as stututory auditors of the company till the conclusion
ol 40% AGM.

They have expressed their willingness 1w be reappointed for a further 1erm. The Company has
received consent from the auditors (o the effect that if they are reappointed, it would be in
accordance with the pravision of the section 141 and/ or other spplicable provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time w0 time.

The Board recommends the reappointment of M/s. 5. Mandal & Co. Chanered Accountants
(Firm registration No.: 314 188E), s the statwory and x auditors of the company for ancther
term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of 40™ AGM till the conclusion ol 45*
AGM subjoct to approval by the members of the company i the ensuing AGM, Accordingly,

Anruol Report 2023 2024
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a resolution proposing reappointment of M/s. 5 Mandal & Co. as the statutory auditors of the
company pursuant to section [ 39 of the Companies act. 2013 forms par of the natice of AGM.

As per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the auditors are not subjected o ratification by
members a1 every consequent Anmual General Mecting. Therefore, no ratification of
appointment of Statutory Auditors will be sought from the members of the Company ot the
AGM. The observation made in the Auditor’s Report read together with relevant notes thereon
are sclf-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments ander Section 134 of the
Companies Act. 2013, Further, there has been no fraud reported by Asditors under sub section
(12} of Section 143 other than thase which are reportable 10 the Central Government,

2. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant 1o the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remunemtion of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed My Priva Mankani of M/s. Mankan & Associates, 1o undertake the Secreturial
audit of the Company. The Secretarial Aodit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure-V1,

3. Internal Auditor

Mis. Gaumy Manoj & Co., practicing chantered accountants, perform the dutics of Imermal
Auditor of the Company and his repon is reviewed by the Audit Commitice from time to time.
E'lphllﬂul to Auditor's Romarks

The observation made in the Auditor’s Repon read together with relevant notes thereon ane
self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section | M of the
Companies Act. 2011

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Palicy

The provisions of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 relmed 10 Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable 1o the Company during the year.

Number of Complaints relating to Sexual Harassment in the last financial vear and
pending as on the end of the Gnancial year

No cases of Sexual Harassment were reported in the financial year. This is suppored by
Sexual Harassment Policy which ensurnes a free and fair enguiry process with clear timelines.
Listing

The shares of the Company are listed on the Metropalitan Stock Exchange of India Limied.

E Yoting

The Company will provide e-voting facility 10 all members 1o enable them to cast their vote
clectronically on all Resolutions sct-fourth in the notice. This s pursuant to section 108 of the
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Compapies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companics (Management & Administration) Rules,
2014 and Regulations, 2015, The instructions for e-voting have been provided in the Notice.

Formal annual evaluntion of Board's own performance, its committees and individua)
Directors

The Board of Directors hus carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
Commitices, and individual Directors pursuant w the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulstions.

The board of directors have been reconstituted afier the sad untimely death of Mr. Avi Lunia
(Independent Director, DIN: 07687360) on 28.03.2024 and Mr. Javanta. Chowdhury (DIN:
10597724) 10 be appoimted on 25.06.2024 as Independent director 1o il the casual YACANCY
arouse in the post. The said sppointment is in terms with all the relevant provisions and section
of the Companies Act. 2013 and SFBI (LODR) regulations, 2015,

During the year the performance of the Board was cvalusted by the Board after seeking inputs
from all the Directors on the basis of criterin such as the Bomd composition and structure,
effectiveness of the Board processes, information and functioning, etc

During the year the performance of the Commitiees was evaluated by the Board after seeking
inputs from the committee members on the hasis of criteria such as the composition of
committees, effectivencss of commitiee meetings, etc.

The sbove criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on the Board Evaluation issued by
the SERL

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors,
the Board as a whole and Chairman of the company was evaluated. taking into scoount the
views ol Executive Directors and Non-Executive Direetors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remureration Commitiee reviewed the performance of
individual Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director
w the Board and Commitice meetings like preparedness on the ssues 1o be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, eic.

A1 the Board Meeting that followed the mecting of the Independent Directors and meeting of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its Committees. and
individual irector was also discussed.

Performance evaluation of Independent Dircctors was done by the entire Board. excluding the
Independent Director being evaluated,

Directors Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors
confirm that:
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&) m the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial vesr ended 31st March, 2024,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating 1o materil departures;

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and upplied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so ns o give o true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2024 and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

£) dmdiunmm:ukmpmpwmmm:ﬁmmﬁrthmm&ﬂaqm
scocunting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directons have prepared the anmunl accounts on a going concern basis;

€) that proper intemal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectivels.

f) the dircctors have devised proper systems 1o ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable luws nd that such systems were adeguate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgment

The Directors expreqs their sincere nppreciation w the valued sharcholders, bankers and
clients and others associated with the Company for their support

HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LT, | HOTRTIOF oA Bommial Dirpetons,

Fask o | i ,;{n--;'fl.:’-..f-li'hn-ﬁ:l'ﬂ
Tarak Nath ey - -
Managing Dire Chancha
. DIN: 7590027
Place: Kolkata
Dane: 28.05.2024
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ANNEXIIRE-1

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clawse (h) of sub-section (3jaf section 134 of the Aot and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Avcounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/srrangements entered into by the company with
reluted parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length trunsactions under thind proviso thereto

. Details of contracts or arangements or trafsactions nit 8t arm’s length basis - NIL

Al ransactions entered into by the Company during the year with related partics were an arm’s length

bhasi,

Details of material contracts or amangement o tramsactions at arm’s length basis

A. List of Reluted Purties and Retationship

-------- ==

| Ancy Constructions Pvtlid

__Kamini Finance & investment Co. Lid.
Gulmghur Trading Pvi. Lid

Cheme Traders Py, Lid.

Maa Kamni Finance Pyt Lid
Visisth Chay Vyapar Lid.

Name of the Related Party Helationship i

Tripty Modi - KMP I

Pavan Kumar Tiwan KMP |

North Fastern Publishing & Advertising Co. —]
Ld. :

Purbanchal Prestressed Lid

| ENTERPRISES WITH COMMON DIRECTORSHIP |

Citystar Infrastructures Lid
_Citystar Foods Pyt Led.
Citystar Agro Indusines Pyt Lid,

INTEREST OF RELATIVES

Ganguly Citystar Enterpeises LLP .
Citystr Ganguly Projects LLP |

DIRECTOR'S INTEREST IN LLP

s ars s

|
|

Name of the Related Nature of Transactl Duringthe | Duringthe |
oy ™ yoar 2023-24 | year 02223

(in‘000) | (in‘0DO)

Gulmohwr Trading Py Lid Creditor for Sundry Expenses 4 | T |
Pawar Kumar Twan Remuneraton e | . |
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uw Euunl Publshng & AdvCo [ o 1
- Citystar infragtructures Lid Loan Taknniees inenast thamcn) 2785 4675
Citystar infrastructures Ltd Loan repaid 15845 .
 Manoj consinucions put lid Loan taken 47470
Chema radres pvi iid Loan given 128250
Name of the Related Party Mature of Balance As at o
31 March, | o Su%
2024(in "000) -
2023(in '000)
| Mangjconsrucfons piid | Amount payable 87470 :
| Citystar Infrastructures Lid Amount Payatie B 76351
Chema traders pvi i Amaunt Recefvatie 128250
Pawan Kumar Tiwarl Armount payable 14

B. Dares)of spproval by the Board, if amy: The transaction is on arms” length basis and in the
ondinary course of business and so the approval of the Board for this purpose s not required.

C. Amount paid as advances, if any -Nil

n PRODUCTS LTD:
Fnrlﬂummmﬁﬁmhﬂ
HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD. | . J'F"ﬁﬂm
T H...-h Ier.“._Hi. L] s ™
Tarak Nath irecls!  Chanchal Rungta
Munaging Director Director
DIN: (343396 DIN: 07590027
Place: Kolkata
Pate: 28.05.2024
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(Pursant o Regulation 1768) read with Schechile 11 Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regdasions,
J085)

We, Tarak Nath Dey, Managing Director and Ms. Tripty Modi, Chiel' Financial Officer
cemify that:

I, We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the vear ended
March 31%, 2024 ind that 1o the best of our knowledpe and belicf:

e These sttements do not contain any materially untroe statement or omit any material
fact nor contain stutements that might be miskeading, and

¢ These stements present true and fair view of the Company’s alfairs and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations,

2. There are. 1o the best of our knowledge and belic!, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year. which arc fraudulent. illegal or in violstion of the
Company's code of conduct;

3. We nccept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controls, we have
evaiunted the cffectiveness of the intermal cantral systems of the Company and we
have disclosed 1o the suditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of the internal conrols, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that we
have taken to rectify the identified deficiencies; and

4. We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluntion, wherever applicable, 10 the
Auditors and Audit Commirtes:

(i) Significant chunges, If any, in the internal control over financial reporting during

the year;

(i) Significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and

that the same has been disclosed in the notes 1o the financial statements; and

(iii} Instances of significant fraud of which we have become oware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant
role in the Company"s intemal control svetam over financial reporting.

HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD.

— . . [LOFYN
Tll-i. H..“ Y | 5o i Tripl}f lﬂi
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kalkatn
Date; 28.05.2024
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ANNEXLURE-IN

ANNUAL CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34(3)
READ WITH PART PARA D OF SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Pant D of Schedule V af the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015, 1, hereby declare that all the
members of the Board of Directors and semior management personnel have affirmed
compliznce with the Code of Conduct, as applicable 10 them, for the vear ended 315t March,
2024,

ROTAHOTI WODO PRODUCTS LTD
IT H 4—3‘ S FEITTLL L,
Pliace: Kolkata ori raics
Date: 18.05.2024 Managing Di
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ANNEXURE IV
Management Discussian and Analvsis Report

Your Directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Repont for the year
ended 11 March, 2074,

The Maragement Discussion and Anabysis have been included in nocordance with the Code of
Corporate Govemance s spproved by the Securities Exchangs Board of Indin (SERIY. This repart has
been annexed with the finoncial statemenes of the Company 1o set o background 10 the workings of the
Company. The emtimates relating to the finunciul sistements ure prepared on reasonable basis and
reflect the true picture of the state of affairs of the Company and the profits los for the year.

The report provides an overview of the sector i which the company fmctions. s poals,
perfarmances, risks, threats, initiatives and strmiegios and also the route which the Company plens 1o
take in the future. These estimates and outlooks wre prone 1o Mectustions in the economy and may
vary from time 1o time depending upon 1he market situstions,

NBFC's form an imtegral part of the country’s fimancial struciere. They not pely compliment the
functioning of hanks but also facilimte inclusive growth of the economy, The role of NRFCs s
effective financial intermediaries has been well recognised as they have inherent abifity 1o take
qukcker decisons, msume greater risks, and customize their servioes and charges mere according 10
the needs of the clients. Morcover, NBFCs assume significance in the small business segment as they
primarily cater 10 the credit requiremenis of the unorganized sctor such as wholesale & retall traders,
small-scale mdustries. NHFCs hove been plaving o very impurium roke bath from the macro-sconanne
perspective and s intepral part of the Indian financial system, enhancing competition and
diversification in the financial secior. It can be said withowt i doubt thal NBFU's have scripted a great
Sucoes 80Ty,

The company is engaged in the business of investment in securities snd providing loars and advances.
Ihe Company is regisiered 4s Non-deposit taking Non-Hankimg Finance Comgany with the Reserve
Bink of India. Since the asset size of the Company is not more than Rs 100 crores it is presemtly Non
Systerically Important Non-Deposit mking NBFC. The company is planning snd is in process in the
current financlal yewr 2024-25 1o soluniarily surrender the O o R. with RO and pursue the real estase
Parsiness in Future.

Financials:

The details of the firancial performance of your Company are reflected in the Balance Sheet, Profit &
Loss Account and other Financial Statements. appesring soparatety. Highlights are provided below:

Particulars 2024 2023
Reveme from Opetaticng 104 1449 .
' Chfer income BT 2115 ]
_Toml Revenue 920 3564
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax kE2 ]| 1278
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The Company neither did indulge in any purchuse of sock nor did it make sny business out of the
retained stock it sold. The increased administrative expenses (including salaries and allowances) set
off the revenues exned by the Company thereby resulting in losses,

The Company's Board of Directors s rewpomsible for the maners stated In Section 134(3) of the
Compunies Act, 2013 (*the Act) with respect 1o the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the fimancial position, financial perfarmance and the cash
flows of the Company in acoondance with the accounting principles gemerally iccepted in India,
including the Accouming Standands specified ander Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Campanies { Accounts) Rules, 2004,

Opporiynitics, | hreats and Ricks

Being in the financial sector subyects the Company to the tvpical risks that any financial institution
faces. The Muctuations in the emnomic comditions poses thrests 1o the Tunctioning of NBFCs, Ta
minimive thene risks the Company takes sufficient veps to sean the external environment regulurly.

The Company has laid dewn 2 well-defined risk managemem mechanism covering the risk mapping.
visk exprsuse and rick mitigation process. A dewlled exercisc is being carried out 10 identify, evalunte,
manage and moniter non-business riska. The Audit Commities and the Board periodically review the
m-ﬁwmm be wken 0 mamage mitigate the same through a properly defined

Human Resource/ Industrinl relations

The company recognises the importance und contribution of ity human resourees for (ts growth and
devielopment of its people. The Company has cordial relations with employees and stafT. There me no
HR relations prablems during the year and the Company does not anticipate any raterial probiems on
the count in the curment vear.

Ioterna) Control Svstems and Adequacy

The Company has disciplined approach to cost and follows prudential nonms in every sphere of s
activities. The Profit making is put a1 the centre of decision making. The cost sre budgeted, reviewed
and monitored. The Company hun established internal control systems for ensuring optimum we of
resources and safeguding the wsscts. The Internal Control Systerm and procedure are adequate and
commensurate with the sire of the Company. These business control procedures ensare efficient e
and protection of the resources and compliance with the policies, procedanes and sahis.

Cauthonary Statement

The statementy in Management Descussion and Analysis Report describing our Company”s objectives,
expectations or predictions muy be forwarded locking within the meaning of applicable reguleions
and other legistations. Actunl results may differ muterinlly from those expressed in the statement.
Important fectors that could influence Company's opermtions include global and domestic financial
market conditions affecting the interest mtes, availability of resources for the financial sector, market
for lending, changes in regulatory directions issued by the Government. tax laws, coonomic siiution
nnd other relevant factors,

Annuel Report 2023-24
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ANMNEXNURE-VI
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31%, 2024

Furivnot to Section 204/1) of the Componies Act, 2013 and Ruie No. 9 of the Companies

Te,

[Appaintment ond Remuneration of Monagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

The Members of

Hatahat Wood Producis Limited

Geound Floor, B-2

Regime Showroom, Next To Liberty Optical
Myrolothy Rosd

Dimapur — 797113, Nagaland

W have cordueiad the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable ststutery provisions
wril the n Sorenee 10 pood corporgte pragtices by M Hotahotl Wood Products Limited
dharaaer enlled ihe Campany) for and during the fimancinl yenr ended Manch 31%, 2074,
Secrenrial Audll was conducted on test check basis in a manmer that provided s #
reasoniie hass for evaleating the corporate conducts’ statutory compliances and expressing
O D Therkad
Ml o ou venfloation of the M's, Hotshoti Wood Products Limited books. papers. minute
Dok, torms poid rotens Thed and other records: muintrdned by the Company and also the
tarmation piovided by the Compnny. & ofTicers, agents and authorized represeniatives
during 1he conduct of secretarkal audit, We bereby report that In our epinion, the Company
faas, during: the sudy period qovering the Rnancial year ended on March 31%, 2004, complicd
Al sty oo igions | (sted hereunder and also that the Company has Board-processcs
alal conrplismee-mechanism in place 1o the extent. in the manner and subject 1o the reporting
il Derestier;
We luet e commingd the hoviks. papers. mimates book, forms and returns filed and other reconds
mapmined B Mo Hotahoti Wood Products Limited for and during the financial year endeod
Slaret 307, 2024 awcorndimg b the: provisions of:
{i The Comypatiies Acl, 2003 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
Y The Segurithes Contracts (Repolation) Act 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rulei magde
thereundi!:
111 g depemitongs At 1996 and the Regulations and Ryve-laws framed thereunder
vl belpn Bachange Maonagement Ao, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thersandet tp the exient of Foreign Direct Investmend, Overseas Dircet Investiment
and Faiermal Commercial Borrowings,
(%1 e teegulations and Ciaidelines prescribed under the Securities Exchange Roard of
feain Auer, |93 1 SEBT Act yvie:
ai The Secinrities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shars
and Takevvers) Repuintions, 2001;
by The Secirities and Exchange Boand of India (Prohibition of Imsider Trading
Hegulations, 201 5;
¢l The Sevesities and Exchenge Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosie
Heguire s Regilations 2000

)

A
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di i Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
andd Frployee Stock Puschase Seheme) Guidelines, 1999-N/A:
w0 The Sevirities and Exchange Board of Indin (lssue and Lismng ol Diehe
Securities) Regulathns, 2008:
1 The Securities and Exchange Dosrd of Indin (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Pramafer Agemis) Regulations, (993 regarding the Companies Act and deuling
with il clicni;
Bl The Securities wnd Exchange Bowd of India (Delisting of Equity Sharev)
Regulations, 2000 nnd-N/A:
B The Securiies and Fuchange Board of Indin ( By back of Securities) Regulations,
[ N A
e Secunties and Fxchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulstion, 201%;
b Wetmme al caamined complianee with the applicable cliuses of the Fallowing:
i1l Seetoual Standacdy bsnied by The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia.
1i) e Listing Agreemnemts entered e by the Company with Metropolitan S10ch
Exvhange of indin Limited (MSET).
oo Muring the periind wiker review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act.
Rules Regulaions Culidclines, Standards. ete. mentioned above.
o Wl IUrEHEE repo Thal
e Doued of Dicectors of e Company is duly constituted with proper batance of Fxeeuive
Wikechars, m-Lyecutive Directors and Independent  Directors. The changes in ithe
et piinn of the Boaed of Directacs that took place during the period under review were
carrieal o o complignee with the provisions of the Act.
Aequale aotice s glven to wll directors (o schedule the Board meetings. agenda and detnited
Apdas o mgierads wiere send ut loust seven days in advance,
B Major desiions are corried through while diserting members” vigws are captured 204
fecorded o5 P of e mindtes
LoWe lurther report that there are adequnte systems and processes in the Company
commeisarste with the size and operations of the Company te monitor snd ensire
complanes woh applicable lows, rofes. regulations and guidelines, such ns laws melated 1w
poztion, ocal lwws appiicable to the area of operation of husiness and other laws generally
zpgslicahie to the Company
i This repont 0 be resd with our leter of even date which i= annexed as Annexure A arnid
lcirmn an kel paet of This teport.

For MANKANI & ASSOCIATES

Company Secrctsries
Peer Review No: 20772021

e M
Place! Kolkata PrivaMankani
e IN.05.2024 Fropricior
Membership No. 34744
C.P. No.: 17947

Udin: ADIST44F0004691 14
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‘Annesure A’
e the sevretarial Auidin Report of M. Hotahoti Wood Products Limineil
lior the Anancial vear ended 31.03.2024)

Ta

Tha Members of

Hotehot! Wood Prodocts Limited
Grousd Hlogr, 3.2

feaima Showroom, Next To Liberty Optical
Nymolotha Road

Bmagpur - 797112, Nagsland

Cur Secraterial Audll Repont for the financial year ended 31.03.2024 of even date i 1o be
fEsd plomg with thic letter,

L Malntenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Campary . Chr responsimlity s 10 express an opimion on these secretarial reconds
hused cs our sudit

T W hive Tollowed the audil practices and processes as were appropriate 10 abtain
seatonable assurmnoe about the cormectness of the contents of the secretarial reconds
The venficabon was done on test basis 10 énsure that cormect facts are reflecied in

cercintial records. We heliove that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
sefnonable hasi Jor ode Opinkon,

. We have not verified the comrectness and appropriateness of financial records and
Bowsks ol Acvounts ol the Tompany.

Lo Where ever reguired, we have obtained the Management Representation sbout the
comnlience of trws. rides and regulation and happening of events cic.

5 Ihe complinnes of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, sunddands s the responsibility of management. Our éxamination wus
Ilemiiad vy the verification ol procedure on test basis.

e Seerctarial Andit Repont is neither an assurance as to the futore viahility of the
Lompany nor the etficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the ailurs ol the Company

For MANKANI & ASSOCIATES
Company Secrelarics
Peer Review No: 2077/2022

leq'}'" Mavi o
Plave:Kolksts PrivaMankani
Date: 28052024 Proprictor
Membership No. 34744

C.P. No. : 17947
Uidin: AO34744F 0691 34
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFORT

Given helow are the Corporate Govemance policies of the Company. As can be seen the
Company’s corporate govemance prctices and disclasures have been camplied well with in
accordance 1o the provisions of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements, Regulations. 2015). Corporate Governance is a set of standards
which aims 10 improve the Company's image, efficiency and effectivencss. It is the road
map, which guides and directs the Board of Directors of the Company to govem the affairs of’
the Company in o manncr most bemeficial to all the Sharcholders. the Creditors. the
Government and the Socicty at large.

This Corporaie Governance Report relating o the year ended March 1%, 2024 has been
issued in compliance with the Regulation 34(3) read along with Clause C of Schedule V of
SERBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and forms a pant
of the Report of the Directors to the Members of the Company and the same is given helow,

1. OUR COMPANY'S FHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company recognises its role as & corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best
practices and highest standards of Corporate Governance through transparency i husiness
ethics, asccountability to its customers, government and others. The Company's activities are
carried out in accordance with good practices and the Company is constantly sriving 1o betler
them and adopt the best practices.

OUR MISSION:

10 provide a healthy working environment for our employees where they are properly
recopnmsed and rowarded.

o continuously evaluate the working and performance of the employess 50 as o
polish their skills and improve the working standards,

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

21 Composition and Category of Directors
In order (o maintain its principle of faimess and adequate transparency in the day 1o day
functioning of the business, the Company has adopted for an optimum mix of executive
and non-ewecutive Directors on its Roard,

The Raard of Directors as on March 31%, 2004 consists of {four Directors of which there
are three Non-Executive Directors and ane Managing Director as follows:
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Name of the Direcior Category Purticulars _
Mr. Tamk Nath Dey Managing Director Re-Appointed as  the

Managing Dircctor for a
period of § years st the
e J6th AGM

Mr. Bimod Kumar DBikani | Mon-Executive A ppointed as an
independent Director Independent Director with
effect from the 36" AGM. |

||||| PRSR R

Mr. Chand Ratan Modi Promoter &  Nonm- | e is the promoter director

|

Executive Director of the Company with effect
| from 22 August, 1999,
Mr. Avi Lunia Non-Executive & | Appointed as an

Independent Director Independent Director with
effect from 6™ February,
2018. I
He passed away on 280
March 2024

Till 28.03.2024 he was

. Independent Director |
Mrs. Chanchal Rurgin Non-Executive Director Re-appoimiment a5 the
Non-Executive Director for

a period of 5 vears at the
- ensuing AGM |

27 Ty Maneirial Fersownal

Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari appointed as the Company Secretary snd Compliance Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 5™ September, 2022 and remains 10 hold his post,

Ms. Tripty Modi appointed as Chief financial officer on 26.08.2016
Board Meetings, Annual General Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year ended 317 March, 2024, the Board met § times on 03%  April
2023; 30° May, 2023, 10th August. 2023; 07* November, 2023; 17 January, 2024,

The attendance of the Directors on these dates is provided in the table bekow:

NAMES OF THE NO. OF BOARD | ATTENDANCE AT
DIRECTOR MEETINGS AGM
N HELD | ATTENDED YES/ NO
CHAND RATAN MODI 5 | ] YES
| TARAK NATH DEY 5 | s YES
 BINDDRUMAR BIHAN] [ 5 YES i
AV1 LUNIA = 5 5 YES
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| CHANCHAL RUNGTA ] 5 5 1l YES

Mr. Binod Kumar Bitani, the Chairman to the Audit Commitioe was also present during
the Annual General Meeting held on 18" September, 2023, The Chief Financial Officer,
Ms. Tripty Modi, who i a permanent invitee 1o the Board of Directors meeting, also
attended al| the Board meetings.

Directorships and Comittee

None of the Direciors on the Board |s 8 member of more than 10 Commitiees and
Chairman of more than 5 Committees as specified in Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 across all Companies in
Indin of which they are a Direcior,

Board Comminiees

The Board of Directors have constituted the following committecs:

a) Audit Commitiee
b) Nombnation and Remunertbon Commities
€) Swmkcholder Relationship Commitiee

The responsibility of the Risk Management and adherence to risk management plan,
procedures and any nsk related maners are delegated to the Audit Commimee only. Hence
there is no scparate risk mansgement commities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Compovition:

The Audit commitiee comprises of 3 directors, The committee functions under the
Chairmanship of Mr, Binod Kumar Bihani, 3 Non-Executive Independent Director. The
other members of the Comminge are Me, Chand Ratan Modi and Mr. Avi Lunia (till
dt. 28,03 2024). The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer are permanent
invitees 1o the meeting.

The details of the related pany transactions are placed before the Audit commites
periodically, Any recommendations (If any) placed by the Commilice are considered and
adopted by the Board. All persons have direct access to the Chairman for sharing their
gricvances, The Audit Committee also has the responsibility to assess risks and find
corrective measures 1o mitignte the same. The Minules of the Audit Commitiee are
circulated to all Directors and are discussed at the Board Meetings.

The commitiee met 4 times during the vear on 30% May 2023; 10" August, 2023; o7
November 2023; 17 January, 2024,
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L2 Term of Reference:

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Comminee covers all aneas mention under Section
177 of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 18 read with Part € of Schedule 11 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, The Board
has slso included in terms of reference of the Audit Committee the monitoring
implementing and review of risk management plan as required under Regulation 21 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and
therefore a separate Risk Management Commitiee hasn't been formed. The broad terms
of refierence of Audit Committee includes review of financial reporting process and all
financial results, statements. disclosures and recommend the same 10 the Board, review
the intemal audit reports and discuss the same with the internal auditors, review internal
control systems and procecures. evaluation of intermal financinl controls and risk
management systems and their effectivencss, 1o meet the stantory suditors and discuss
their findings, their scope of sudit, post audit discussion, suditor's independence,
adequacy of intermal audit functions, sudit gualifications, if say, appointment/ removal
and remuneration of auditors, changes in accounting policies and practices, reviewing
approval and disclosure of all related party transactions, reviewing with the management
the performance of the statutory and internal auditors and their remunerstion, compliance
with listing agreements, listing regulations, company law and other legal requirements
and the Company's financial and risk management plan and policies ond its
implementation, disaster recovery policies and complisnce with statutory requirements.

3.3 Intermal Audir

Mis. Gaurav Manoj & Co., procticing chartered accountants, performs the duties of
Intemmal Auditor of the Company and his report is reviewed by the Audit Committee
from time to time.

A4 Anendance

The committee met 4 times during the year on 30™ May 2023; 10™ August, 2023; 7
November 2023; 17 January, 2024,

The following table shows the atendance of the members during the Audit Committee

meeting:
' NAME OF THE MEMBERS NO. OF AUDIT COMMITIEE
. MEETINGS
HELD ATTENDED
CHAND RATAN MODI Il 4 —
RINOD KUMAR BIHANI 1 n
CAVILUNIA 4 4
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Mr. Tarak Nath Dey. Managing Director and Ms. Tripty Modl, Chief Financial Officer
ulso attended all these mectings.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors to consider,
analyse, determine and approve on behall of the Board and on behalf of the sharcholders
the remuneration to be paid 1o the excoutive directors of the Company. The committes
functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Binod Kumar Bihani s Non-Executive

Independent Director. The other members of the Committee are Mr, Chand Ratan Modi
and Mr. Avi Lunta (nll du, 28.03.2024).

5. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIF COMMITTEE
5.1 Composition:

The Sukeholder Relationship Committee comprises of 1 Directors, The committes
functiony under the Chatrmanship of Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, a Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director. The other members of the Committee are Mrs, Chanchal Rungta
and Mr. Avi Lumia (010 dt, 28 03.2024).

The Registrars and Transfor Agents of the Company is Niche Technologies Pvi. Lid. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Metropolian Stock Exchange of India Limited.
5.2 Details of Complaints from shareholders:

Pursuamt 1o Regulation 13(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015, below is the Statement of Invesior Complaints for the
yeor ended 31% March, 2024,

SLNO.  PARTICULARS NO. OF
COMPLAINTS
Pending at the beginning of the year with the Company | Nil
|
Received during the year by the Company Nl
Z.
Redressed durmg the year by the Company Nil
. &
Pending at the end of the year with the Compiny Nil
4
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6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
6.1 Particulars of last three Anmual Genernl Meetings ave given beluw:

Relating 1o Financial | Venue of AGM Date of AGM Tume of AGM
Year ended on
2021 PO. 27.12.2021 10.00 AM.
NAGINIMORA Mon,
Nagaland - T9RA22 |
2022 P.O. 1 15.09.2022 10.00 AM.
NAGINIMORA Mon,
Nagaland - 798622
023 Ground Floor, B-2 | 18082023 10:00 AM.
Realme showroom, neat
o hberty  optical,
Nymolotha Road,
damapur, Nagaland-
797112, India
6.2 Special Resolution:

Following Special Resolutions were passed:

At the Annual General Meeting held in the last year on 18th September 2023, the re-
appointment of Mr. Avi Lunia (DIN:07687360) as non-executive independent direcior has
been made by passing the Special Resolution

At the Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 25" June 2024 Mr. Jayanta Chowdbury
(DIN:10597724) proposed 1o be uppointed as Noo-executive independent director by the
specal resolution to fill the casual vacancy arise in the post by the death of Mr. Avi Lunia
(DIN:OTERET 360).

6.3 Postal Ballot:
No resolutions were passed by the Postal Ballot in any of the previous three Annual
General Mectings.
7. Means of Communication
7.1 The financial results and the quarterly sharcholding pamtern are electronically
transmitted to the stock exchanges and are also updated on the Company’s website

waw hwploudn. Quarterly results are emailed to all Members whose email is
registered with the Company,
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%2 Sharcholder communication including Notices and annual reponts are being sent w0 the
email addresses ol Members available with the Company. Annual Accounts are sent 1o
members at least 25 days before the Annual Genernl Meeting.

%4 The company's website www hwplcoin makes online announcements of Board meeting
dates, results of the meetings, quanery financial results, announcements of the date of
Anmual Ceneral Mecting and proposed dividend, changes in Directors and other
announcements. The websile also provides quarterly shareholding patiemn.

4 Address for Communication: All cormmunication regarding share transactions, change of
address, bank mandates, nominations ete. should be addressed to the Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company on the following address;

Niche Technologies Private Limited
Tth Floor, Reom, No. 7A & 7B,
IA, Auckland Place,
Kaolkata-700017

Phone: (033) 2280 6616/ 17/ 18
Fax: (033) 2280 6619

Email: picheteehpla nicheiechpl.com

Sharcholders are encouraged 10 comespond with the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
and the Company via omail 1o speed up the response, reduce paperwork and also 1o help us
address the complaints faster. Shareholders ure roquested 1o mention the Folio Nos (DP-1d
and Client Id in case of demat shares), phone or mobile number and their Email Id so that
we can contact them and redress their complaints immedistely. However, for instructions
like change of bank mandste, change of address, transfers & transmission of shares e,
letters duly signed by the sharcholders concemed should be sent otherwise such requests
cannot be processed by the Registrars. Email 1Ds of the shareholders will have to be
registered with the Company to enable the Company or the Registrars 1o communicate
electronically.

K GENERAL SHARFHOLDER INFORMATION
&I Dare, Time, Venue of the Anniual General Meeting:

The Annunl General Mecting of the Company will be held on 24% September. 2024 m 10.00
AM. at Ground Floor, B-2 Realme Showroom Next to Liberty Optical, Nymolotha Road,
Dimapur, NL-T97112, IN.

A2 Finuncial Year:
The Financial Yeir of the Company ended on March 317, 2024,
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8.3 Record Date & Cur-Off Date:
The Cut-Off Dame is 17" Sepiember, 2024 for determining who will be entitled 1 vote
electronically on the resolutions mentioned in the Notice convening the Annual Gencral
Meeting by remote-vating and also vole at the meeting venue,

R4 Electronic Voting:

Pursunnt 10 Section |08 and other applicable as per Company®s Act, 20173 road with the
Companies (Management and  Administration) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
requirements, voting at the Annual General Meeting will be made through electronic voting.
The electronic voting (“E-Voting™) period will be from 9.00 AM. on 215t September, 2024
to 5.00 P.M. on 23rd September, 2024, both days inclusive.

No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot or electronic voting.
Scratiniser for electronic voring: Ms. Priva Mankani of M/s. Mankani & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No: 34744 and C.P. No. 17947) of Block-
309, Flat 2A; Fon Residency, 38 S.N.Roy Road, New Alipore. Kolkata-700038, Phone:
7407223556, Email TD: makani.priag gmail com) has becn appointad a8 the scrutiniser 1o
scrutinise the electronic vating process and the voting at the veme of the Annual General
Meeting in a fair and transparent manner and 1o give her report to the Chairman.

XS Listing on Stock Exchanges:
The shares of the Company are listed on the fidllowing Stock Exchange:

Metropalitan Stock Exchange of India
Serip Code/ Symbal: HOTAHOTI
Vibgyor Towers, 4* Floor,

Plot No, C 62, G Block,

Opp. Trident Hotel,

Banclrs Kiurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai-40098

For dematerialisation of Equity shares of the Company of the Face Value Rs 10/~ esch, the
ISIN No. allotted 10 the Company is INFU2SE01012,

The annual listing fees have been paid and all requirements of the stock exchanges where
the shares are listed, including submission of quanerly reports and certificates, are complicd
with.
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M.& Registrars and Share Transfer Agenm
The share management work, both physical and demat. is being handled by the Registrars
and Share Transfer Agems of the Company whase name and address is given below:

Niche Technologies Private Limited
Tth Floor, Room, No. 7A & 7B,

3A, Auckland Place, Kolkata- 700017
Phone: (033) 2280 6616 / 17/ 18
Fax: (033) 2280 6619

Email: pighetechpha mchetechpl com
Contsct Person: Asholl Sen

8.7 Share Tramsfer Agent
Share Transfer requests valid and compiete in all respects ere normally processed within 15
days. Power has been delegated 10 the Company Secretary and the Registrar and Transfer
Agents for expediting share ransfers. Valid requests for demat of shares are completed
within 10 days. The Company’s shires are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized (orm.
The ISIN No. allomed to the Company [s INES2SEO1012

L& Dixrribution of Shareholding ax on March 114, 2024

SHARES IELD NO. OF SHARES HELD ‘i
[ TN PHYSICAL MODE 97.840 ' 0.489
DEMAT WITH NSDIL 191,01.120 95.5)
DEMAT WIT1l CDSL 1.000 0,003
TOTAL 1.99,99,.960 100
N, OF | NO, OF Y NO. OF [
SHARFS SHARFHOLDERS SHARES
HELD
1-300 980 08 1964 97,840 0.4R92
501-1000 0 0.0000 0 00000
100 1-5000 0 0,0000 0 00000 |
S001-10000 i 0. 0000 [T - 0,0000
10001-50000 0 0. 0000 0 00000 |
50001 -100000 2 0.2004 153,500 0.767%
100001 & ahove 3 1.6012 1.9748,620 98.7423
TOTAL 99y 100 1,99,99,960 100
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&.9 Sharcholding pattern ax on March 31, 2024

‘I'l'r:ﬁ:llihﬂmmhﬂmhﬁngFmﬂnnrthﬂmrumMﬂ‘.mhls
available in the website of the company. Pursuant (o0 Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92
of the Companics Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 1o time, the Annual Return of the

Company is available on the Company's website nt www. hwpl.co.in

R10 Top ten Shareholders

PARTICULARS NO. OF SHARES HELD

T
MARUTI SECURITIES | S8, 50,000 2625
LIMITED
SUDHIR JAIN 23.00,000 11.50
PROGRESSIVE STAR 15890000 7.0
' FINANCE PRIVATE
LMITED .
UTTAM MACHINERY & 9,495,000 408
SUPPLY CO. PVT. LTD.
' MALURYA TRADING CO. 9,736,800 4.6
LTD.
GULMOIUR TRADING PVT. 9,00.000 u 4.50
LD,
[KAMINI  FINANCE & £,70,000 435
INVESTMENT CO. LTD.
STEWART INVESTMENT & £.00,000 4.00
FINANCIAL PVT. LTD,
VISISTH CHAY VYAPAR 8,00,000 4.00
LIMITED
MEGA RESOURCES B,00,000 )
LIMITED

Annugi Report 2023-24




9.

HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD,
Ground Floor, B-2 Realme Showrmom Next to Likerty Optical, Nymolotha Road, Dimapur,
NL-T9T11E IN
Ermadl Id: hwpl 1T gimm] com, Phone No: 033-66133300
CIN: L221INLIGSPLCON21 49
Websitewwow hwpleoin

DISCLOSURES:

9.1 Details of wansactions with reliied parties have been reported in Notes of Accounts.
These disclosures are also made for the purpose of Regulmtion 1041) (a) of the Securities
and Exchange Bosrd of India (Substantinl Acquisition of Shares und Takeoversi
Regulations, 201 1. All the wansactions with related parties are at arm's length basis and
there are no materially significant related party transactions which may have patential
conilict with the interests of the Company at large. The Related Party Transaction Policy
is available on the Company’s website ww w.hpleo in.

9.2 There we no instance of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or strictures
imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on ans
matter related 10 capital maskets in the past three vears.

9.3 The Company has established a vigil mechanism svstem and has in place a “Whistle
Blower Policy™ the details of which are mentioned on Company’s website. Adegquate
safeguards have been provided ngainst any victimisation of persons who use the vigil
mechanism. All persons have been given direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee to lodge their grievances. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Commitiee w0 lodge their grievances,

9.4 Mandatory requirements and non-mandatory requitements have been complied with
except that the Company docs not send the halfl-vearly financial performarnce 1o each
household of sharcholders whe do niot have their email 1D registered with the Company
or the Depository Participants,

.5 Management Discussion Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors Repon.

9.6 No presentutions were made 10 the institutional investors and analysts during the vear.

9.7 The Company docs nol have any subsidiary therefore corresponding disclosures have not
been mude,

i!.lThm.-hm:hemmnhlichunﬂnhbimunﬂmpuﬁhtul&rhg:duhgﬂmpﬂl
five years. The Company has not issued any GDR's or ADR's or wamants or any
convertible instruments. Hence comresponding disclosares have not been made,

9.9 Dther items which are not spplicable are not applicable 10 the Company have not been
separately commented upon,

HOTAHOTI Woon PRGOS
HOTAHOT! WODO PRODUCTE LTD Enrngfmm Bosrd of Dircetors

- i - —
b "~ ( Landhnd Kogiffony, _m:t
Tarak Nuth TR0 Chanchal Rungts T

Managing Director Director Chiel Finance Officer
DIN: (00343396 IN: 07590027

Ploce: Kolkata
Dinte: 28052024
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ﬁlw;l.-.ll!l-'.i. Flat 2A, an Residency, 38 S.N. Roy Road, Kolkata-70003%(W B )
382, Mot Nagar, Lucknow — 226004(L 1" )

Mobile: +31 7407223556 || E-Mail: mankanipria@gmail som

INDEFESBENST ALDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE, GOVERNANCE

T,
The Yembers nf

Hetaboll Wosd Producty Limioed

{iroumd Floor, B-2

Rulme Shomriwem. Meat To Liberty Oprical
S woranbortlea Fosid

Mimapur - 79710 Mugaiand

W W hine examined and reviewed the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Liovernonge by Ms Hotshoti Wood Products Limited (hereinafter referred 10 as
“the Company ) for the period ended 31st March, 2024 as stipuluted in the
Lesting Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange(s) and SERI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 1o the extent
upplicable,

A The compliance of the conditions ol Corporate Governance is the responsibility of
the mamagement. Our examination has been limited 10 review of the procedures
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Govemance. It Is nclther an sudit nor an
expression of opinion on the financinl statements of the Company.

Lo b wlr opition and W best of our information and according 10 the explanations
given 1o us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management.
we cernify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Livemanee us stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement,

. We further siate that such compliance is neither an assurance as 1o the future
viability o the Company nor the cfficacy or effectiveness with which the
mmsagement has conducted the afiairs of the Company.

Mankanid Associutes
Qe Al
Mare: Kialkats PrivaMankani
Dhate: 28052024 Propricior
Membership No. M7

Certificute of Pracies No. @ 17947
Uikl ADMT I FBHLGY 0]



Mankani& Associates
Practcing Company S i .

Block-309. Flar 24, Fort Revidency, 38 SN, Roy Road, Kol =T 004 3¢ “'..ij
JR2, Moti Nagar, Lucknow - 226004

Mobile: +91 7407223556 || E-Mail: mankani pria@guuil com

HTI Y .

(Purvvant i Regulation 34(3) and Schedwie ¥ Para € clawse (1)1} of the SERT
ftitiieg (gt gnd Disclesire Requiremenin) Regulations, 207 5)

I

Uhe Slembuery ol

Fipinbotd Woeod Predpels Limlied

Lorvmmid Flosr, B-2

Realme Showroum. Next To Liberty Oplica)
Noumoloths Bl

[Mmapar = 97112 Nagalssd

| tave shamined the relvvan registers, records, forms, returs and dischosures received from e
Lhrciun of Hisahott Wood Produes Limited having CIN L202) INLISBAPLCDU2 149 pnd hurvinng
regstered office a1 Ground Floor, B-2, Realme Showroam, Next To Liberty Optical, Nymalotha
Foul Dimapetr -~ 797112, Nagaland (hereinafter referred 10 & “the Company'}, produced belore
metis B the Campany for the purpose of ising this Centificate. in accordance with Repulation
141y rend with Schedule ¥ Para-C Sub clawse 106 of the Securities Exchange Moard of [ndia
Hding Ublgations and Disclosere Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

1Ty e and fo the best of my information and sccording 10 the verifications {including
el (dentification Number (DIN) status the paortal www.mchgovin} as considered
neceaany and explanations fumished 10 me by the Company & its ofMicers, | hereby certlfy tha
foae of the Derectors an the Boamd of the Company as stited below for the Financial ¥ear endding
an Mook, 2023 have been debarned or disqualifiad from being appointed or continuing as
Misiions of compaiiss 1 the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Wil e am sueh ather Stuutoey Authority.

SN Name of Director (e __ Date of sppeintment
| TankginDey | oaiwe B3/03/3010
= | Chand Ratan Modi o H1343685 22081909 ==
i Cluneial Runp 07590027 13/08:2016 B
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DUM DUM JIN,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LTD.
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of HOTAHOTI WOOD
PRODUCTS LTD. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income/(expense),
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Financial Statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (“the Financial Statements”).In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024, and its profits
and other comprehensive income/(expense), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. am—
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Serial | Key Audit | Auditor’s Response

No. |  Matter | B
1. ' Valuation of ' We have assessed the procedure of sale and purchase of |
Imvestment | investments including year end valuation. We have .

obtained all sources of documents for valuation of

; —— | unquoted shares and its subsequent sale. St
2. Revenue We have reviewed the procedure of revenue recognition in
Recognition and | relation to interest income. No income has been recorded
Provision for for NPA assets. The loans which have become NPA,

| doubtful debts | necessary provisions are made in the books.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, the Board's report including annexure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholders information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our
Auditors Report thereon.

Our opintan on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or other information obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Indla, Including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting

process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone Financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to cgnm:ulunmehwith them all



relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11-

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

ia) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ib) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

ic) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

{e) The observations on financial transactions do not reveal any matters which have any
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

{f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer Lo our separate
Report in Annexure-B.

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses, {/a e,
L 8
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iii. There were no amounts due which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no fundsiwhich are material either individually or In the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no fundsiwhich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided
under {a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 01, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

For S. MANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 314188E

(H. C.

Partner

Membership No. 050150

UDIN: & Yo 5017 081 g ke
Place: Kolkata

Date: 28™ May, 2024




ANNEXURE - “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred 0 m paragraph (1) under ‘Repon on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of
our report to the Members of Hotahoti Wood Products Lid of even date)

Te the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us hy the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

1. {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including gquantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE™) and relevant details of right-of-use
nssets,

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified in o phased manner, In our opimon. this peniodicity of physical verification 1s reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion, and sccording
to the information and explanations given 1o us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification,

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has
not revalued its PPE during the vear.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the vear or are pending
ugninst the Company as at 31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended in 2016) and rules made theresmdler.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical inventories.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii) (a) of the Order 15 not applicable to it

(b} During the vear, the Company has not availed any working capital limit from Banks or Financial
Institutions on the basis of security of Loans:

i {a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause
3itiNa) of the Order is not applicable to it.

{(b) The Company. being a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC’), registered under provisions
of RBI Act, 1934, In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given 0 us, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all loans and advances in the nature of loans and puarantees, provided during the year #re, prima
facie. not prejudicial to the Company's interest,

(¢} The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC'), registered under provisions.
of RBI Act. 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the
saidd Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms,
monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers as stipulsted. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans and
sdvences in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and in cases where repayment of principal and inferestis nol received as
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stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company. According w the information and
explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are tken by the Company for recovery thereol.

(d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made
thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the sald ActRules, particularly. the
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and report 1otal nmount
overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its customers for more than 90 days. In
cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the
cognizance thereof is taken by the Company. According 1o the information and explanation made
available to us. reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof,

(¢) Since the Company’s principal business is 1o give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause
Wit Wed of the Order is not applicable 1o it

(1) Based on our audit procedures, according 1o the information and explanation made available 1o us,
the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifving any terms or period of repayment during the year.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
misde investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of Section 185 of the Act.
The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act; the other provisions of
Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits us at March 31. 2024
und hence the provisions of the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company,

vi. The Central Govemment has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Compuny. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable w the Company.

vii. (a) In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given to us. the Company
has generally been regulur in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating 1o amounts
deducted/scerued in the books of sccount in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund. employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax. duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities during the year, According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ stale insurance,
income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of  customs, cess and any other material statutory dues
were in arrears s st 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

viii. In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have nol come across any
transactions pot recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196] (43 of 1961 ).

ix. (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings 1o
financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(h) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.




(¢ According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures  performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(d} The company has not taken any lunds from any entity or person on account of or 1o mest the
obligations of its associnte. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures,

. (0) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not mised any moneys by way of public offer
during the current finuncial year,

(b} A¢cording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment of equity shares
during the year, '

x1. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according o the information
and explanations given 1o us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

(k) In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given 1o us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auoditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(¢} According to the information and eéxplanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

xil, The Company is not & Nidhi company, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is oo
applicable to the Company.

xiil. According 1o the information and explanations given io us and bhased on our exnmination of the
records of the Company. transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
stanidalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

xiv. {a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not an internal audit system
cormmensurale with the size and nature of its business,

xv. According to the information and explanations given 1o us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (#) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration.

(b} According 1o the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtnining a valid CoR from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(¢} According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (*CIC ") as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.
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xvil, The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial yoar and in the immediately
preceding financial yvear covered by our audit.

svili. During the year, no change in Swtuwtory Auditors of the Company have taken ploce

xix. According tw the information and explanations given 1o us and on the hasis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
along with details provided in Note 28 to the Financial sttements which describe the muturity
analysis of assets & lisbilities other information accompanying the financial ststements. our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and hased on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 1o believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guamntee nor any assurance that
all abilities falling due within & period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due

xx. The Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards 1o Corporate Social Responsibility are
not applicable 1o the company during the vear. Accordingly, clouse 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable.

xxi.The Company is not required to prepare any Consolidoted Financial Statement, accordingly
Clawse 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable,

For SMANDAL & CO,
Chanered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 314188E

(H. C. Dey
Partner

Membership No. 050190
UDIN: 240 5ot §o AKATHI 6220

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28" May, 2024




ANNEXURE - 'B' TO AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 1 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HOTAHOTI WOOD
PRODUCTS LTI as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director of the Company Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to company's polictes, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rellable financial information, as reguired
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting {the*Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, ssued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained |s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Contd.




Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonadle assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the preparation aof
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policles
and procedures that-

(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2)provide reasonable assurance thatl transactions sre recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial staterments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.,

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemnal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materfal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal fMnanclal controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reporting may become tnadequate
becase of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In ow optrion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such intemnal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 11, 2004, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”,

For S.MANDALE CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 314188E

(H.C.DEY) |
o L wTIA
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Hmmnmmmumn
Notes lo the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

6. Dther Financlal Assois
| (Rs. in 000)
Parti Az at 31si As at Ist
e March, 2024 March 2023
Interest accrued but not Gus .
Income acorued bul nol due - .
Total : ~ ]
7. Other Non-Financial Assets
(Rs. in 000)
Particul As ol 31st As af 315t
March, 2024 March 2023 |
Balances with Govermmant Authorities * 447 LT
iner Recalvablea 4 5E3 1,185
Agans! Capstal Contracts 1726098 44 a5
Total 1I7T.TH u.ﬂ
* represants balance lying with Revenue Authorilies
Nata - B inveniores mgq.
As at 31st As at 318t
F o March, 2024 March 2023
ook in Trade 1.55.888( 1,55 855
1,55,368] 155,555
ot
{
L | T
N 2B)e
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HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes farming part of the financial staterments as at 318 March, 2024

12. Other Financlal Liabilities

{Rs. in 000}

Particulars

As at
J1st March, 2024

As at
J1st March, 2023

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings

Interast Accrued and due on Borrowings

Interest Accrued but not due on Othars

Unpaid Drvidends

Unpaid Matured Deposits and Inlerest Accrued thereon
Unpaid Matured Debentures and Interest Accrued thereon
Security Deposits & Retentions

Payable 1o Employess

Commissicn Payable to Dsrectors

Liabslity foe Operating Expenses

Financial Guarantes Liability

17.283

17.038

Total

17,283 |

17,038

13. Provisions

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

o

31st March, 2023

Prowsion for employes benefits
Provision for Taxation
|Provision for Unavaded Leave
Otners

Total

14, Other Non-financial liabilities

(Rs. in 000)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Sundry Sabilities (Interest Capitalisstion) Account
Temporary Overdralt

Statutory Liabiities*

Oiham

Total

2468

B E |

* Reprisents TDS deduched and payable




HOTAROTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED
Motes o the Financial Sislsmenis for the year sndsd 1188 March, 2034

15 Eguity Share Capial

I A mi 31wt March 3034 gnggpﬁa_

:m Mo of Bhares [ | Mo, of Bhars is

Authorised '

[Eguily Stares Ha 10 par vaias per ahare 2.00, 40,000 l.m.m' 2.00,10,000 2,00, 100}

Imsusd and subwcribed

Eauily Shares, &8 104- par wahe par share 1,50 #8960 100000 19099540 1,86 feb 50

Fully Paig-up

Capilty Shaces, By 10/ par vake per share 1,89 55 w0 2000000 19699 880 uu.tu*
— T [ %hason

181 Rstonciiation of the Number of Eguily Shares cutstanding

The reconolishan of fa nember of soully shami sutsiandng e e corespondng Bmeey Narsal as o (he Belance Shesl e B S8l oL
D

Asal 3181 2024 As st 3isi March, 2033
Ty S No. of Bhares " No. of Shares M
M v Retgiriaig ) e v 180 400,000 19900860  L00600
Rie inaLe during the ye
A |ssued o fully peEd-up Donus sheres by capdlatsaton of
Sec s Pimruum |
Add: Adotrmant purssmnt 1o Scheme of Ameigamalien, wihol
pEymant being recehad i Cash
Al the end af the yaar L 2 1,99.95,950 #.00 000,

151 Rights, prelorences and resirictions in rmspact of ssch clees of shares

The Compamy's Bulonsed cagpial consstls of dasses of shares, rofered Lo as Equity Shares and Ra 100 esch | Eacn holder of squity shnres &
eridld (0 orw wole oo ahee

Tha Company depiaies and pays deidend in Indin rupsas The disdand. § any. propcesd By B Boord of Deecion s subject b ihe sppiovel of
the sharafaiges in ihe enmuing Annus Genesl esting.

In e event of kgudaton of e Company. Me Nolsers of equity ahares wil be arifed & feceve any of the remainng sasets of the Company,
afer gatributlon of all prefereniial smounts. The distibubon will te i groparion i the number of eguhy sharms heid by ihs sharhaiden.

18D Bhuires aHobied s fully peic-up withowl paymant being recsived bn cashiby way of bonus shases (during § yeam preceding 318t
March, 2034}

The Company Ban nol e sy shates wihoul paymant beng received in cash’ by way of banus shanes siece 201415

154 Cwinia of Sharoholders holding mote than §% of 1he ogquity shafes aach, bne sot oul below;

" Asmt 3% March, 2004
Wome of S shonnalinn No. of Shares | % of Sharshoiding
Miaruti Securitss Lid, B, 50,000 20.24 58,50,000| WIS

W ATA T o]
ik ..-:Fi:':h-'.'ﬂ:':r:._ﬁhl
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HOTAHOTI WOOD PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year anded 3151 March, 2024

Mote:17 '
Change in Invantories of Stock-in-Trade
iRs. in 600}
Particulars As at As ot
aibs HstMarch, 2024 | 3wt March, 2023
1 ing Stock 1,55 856 158 808
2{Closing Stock 155886 1,55 864
Total = :
—— e
Purchase of Stock o
As at Agat
g e st March, 2024 | 318t March, 202
Purchass of stock m—
Total = .
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HOTAKQT! WOCD PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes (o the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

HWmHﬂhﬁllﬂummtl[nﬁl . {Rs. In 000}
As on 31at March, 2024 As on 318t March, 2023
Particulars intruments Instruments Financial Instrumants
measured ot fair | measured at Imtruments maasured at
value through OCI| lmnrlindjmt measured at| Amortsed Cost
Loans frefer Nate No. 24 1) - 15.648] - @21647)|
Total ] | ﬂ..“]l - {21,847
24.1 Impairment on Loans (Rs. In 000}
As on 315t March, 2024 As an 318! March, 2023
| On Financial nFinancial | Financial | On Financial |
Particulars Intruments Instruments | intrumants |  Instruments
messured at fair | messuredat  measured ot messured sl
value through OCI Amortised Cost | fair value Amortised Cost
Bac Detis writen-off fnet)
w058 0N ASSets acquind in sEtataction of debt : .
Provsion for Imparment = {5,540 . (21,847)
Tﬂ . IMI : ﬂtm
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